SOLICITATION W9113M-04-R-0005

QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS

Q1:  The Guardian Installation Protection Program is a diverse and complex program.  We are concerned that Section L and M of the RFP do not reflect the need for offerors’ to provide an IPP IMP and IMS as part of the proposal submission covering the installation per fiscal year as presented in the 21 August Industry briefing (200 installations over 72 months).  Accordingly, the Government’s ability to award based on total capacity and surge capability may be limited.

A1:  Installation scheduling requirements will be specifically covered in the Program Management TD to be awarded after contract award, and separate TDs for groups of installations.  With no proposed Government installation schedule in the RFP, the Government believes it would be premature to require offerors to create IMPs/IMSs at this time.  IMPs and IMSs are envisioned to be part of the Program Management TD and follow-on TDs to be released after contract award.

Q2:  Section L of the RFP currently requires offerors’ to provide proposals to be written in a 12 point text font with 1.5-line spacing and that all fonts on graphics be no smaller than a 12 point font.  We believe this restriction will severely limit the amount of information that can be presented in the LSI proposal.  We recommend that the text be single spaced and graphics font simply be required to be legible.

A2:  There will be no change in line spacing, text, and graphics.  

Q3:  In both the Government responses to the questions posted on 24 December 2003 and the final RFP cover letter posted on 30 December 2003 it states that the contract type will be Cost-Plus- Fixed-Fee (CPFF) Term.  At the December 10th Industry Day and on page 38 of the final RFP, it states that the contract will be awarded as a CPFF Level of Effort (LOE) contract.  Please clarify which contract type is correct.

A3:  These terms are synomous and are, in fact, the same contract type.  A term contract is one that is “fixed” by length of the

term/period of performance; number of direct production person hours (DPPHs); and/or estimated value (estimated cost plus fixed fee).  When any of these three distinct parameters are reached, the contract is over.

Q4:  The Government’s response to one of the questions posted on 24 December 2003 (page 44 of 49) stated, “It is not anticipated that the offeror will provide composite rates…”  Is it the Government’s intention to have the offeror provide a separate rate table for the Prime and each LSI subcontractor that maps to the Government labor categories?

A4:  Yes, See Exhibits IX through XII.

Q5:  As part of the complete IPP for an installation, the contract requires, per Para C.2.8.1 of the SOW, “the contractor will use the GFI to create the final installation-specific design” and that the government must approve the detailed equipment installation plan and schedule before initiation of COTS procurement, construction, or equipment installation. In addition, C.2.8.2 requires the contractor provide and be responsible for site preparation, installation of equipment; C2.8.3 requires the contractor to provide training and exercises, and as part of C.2.9 a series of logistics activities related to the 1st year’s sustainment of the FoS.  The sample TD requires the contractor to clearly demonstrate “their approach and implementation of a final solution based on the government’s partial solution”.  Are we correct to assume that as part of the pricing for the sample TD, that 1) we are to price all costs through site exercise and completion of the 1st year’s sustainment as outlined in the SOW, and 2) the intent is that the government’s approval of the design for the sample TD is waived for this proposal in order to do so?  

A5:  Yes, the offeror can assume that the Government has waived approval of the offeror’s proposed design.  The offeror’s cost build-up efforts (Vol V, Tab C) needs to include all costs associated with his design approach to include site exercises and a 12-month sustainment effort as outlined in the SOW.

Q6:  The SF33 does not contain a DPAS rating.  What is the Guardian IPP DPAS rating?

A6:  No DPAS rating is currently assigned to the Guardian IPP program; however, Guardian is pursuing DPAS Rating DO-C3.

Q7:  Page 34, Key Personnel Clause.  Our assumption is that no names should be included in the section.  Is our assumption correct.

A7:  No.  Section L, para L.4.2 (c), (Tab A1) requires offerors to identify key personnel and provide a resume for the proposed LSI PM.  It is not, however, necessary to comlet the Key Personnel Clause on page 34 as part of the proposal.  This clause will be completed at contract award. 

Q8:  Section K, page 55, 58,61,62: for 52.215-6 place of Performance, 52.255-2 Buy American Certificate, 252.227-7-17 Identified and Assertion of Use, Release, or Disclosure Restriction, 252.227-7028 Technical data or Computer Software Previously Delivered too the Gov. and 252.247-7022 Representation of Extent of Transportation by Sea is the offeror to certify to what is known at this time, to the sample TD or to certify with actual TDs? Please clarify?

A8:  The offeror shall certify to what is known at this time; however, the certification requirements will continue throughout the life of the contract and re-certification will be done as necessary based on the specific TDs.

Q9:  Section L pages 65-71: Our assumption is that subcontractor details rate information can be submitted directly to SMDC?  Is our assumption correct?  IF so how many copies of the supporting information are required?

A9:  Yes, the information should be submitted directly to Ms Michele Williams (SMDC) - one copy.  In addition, see Section L.1, “Submission of Proposal” for complete details.

Q10:  The Government attached a 15 page Overarching Test Concept Plan (OTCP) to the RFP with emphasis on the integrated role of the M&S, UA, IEAs, IIEAs, etc.  Yet there is not a place defined in either Section L or Section M where an approach to this integrated test and M&S program can be addressed or evaluated.  The M&S section can address some of the topics, but it would appear inappropriate to discuss the UAs, IEAs, and IIEAs in this section.   Was it the Government’s intention that an approach to the OTCP be addressed in the proposal?  If so, where will it be evaluated?

A10:  The Government provided offerors a copy of the Guardian IPP OTCP as supporting information to the SOW.  The requirements to support a Government led team to execute the OTCP will be issued with the site specific TD.

Q11:  Reference Page 79 Section L.4.2(c)-(TABA4):  The subcontract goals under the 23% subcontracting goal include a 7% subcontracting goals for “other small business.”  It is not clear what is included in this category since the other subcontracting goals have statuary definitions for what businesses are included (e.g., HUBZone businesses).  Additionally; it appears that an assumption has been made that the subcontracting goal is a cumulative result of the subcontracts goals.  It is our assumption that the subcontract goals are independent of the total subcontracting goal of 23%, meaning that it would be feasible for the LSI to exceed a subcontracting goals (e.g., the 5% goal for SDBs), but not necessarily exceed the overall 23% SB goal.  

A11:  Your assumption regarding the independence of the subcontracting goals is absolutely true, although qualifying firms can be counted under multiple categories ( e.g. a WOSB would count against both the WOSB & total SB goals).   The “other small businesses” title was simply our created term of art to describe small businesses which do not also fit within the other specified subcategories.  This term and its goal have been deleted - see changes to Section L.4.2(c), Tab A4, in the Amendment to the Solicitation.  Contractors are expected to meet all subcontracting goals.  Exceeding one goal does not mean that another goal can be reduced.  

Q12:  The Award Term Plan has an Integrated Master Plan (IMP) and Integrated Master Schedule (IMS) as elements the contractor will be evaluated against for subsequent Award Terms.  However, neither an IMP nor IMS is required to be submitted as part of the proposal.  Without an IMP/IMS being submitted and evaluated as part of the proposal process how does the government intend to assess the Contractor’s ability to plan and carry out the overall program?  

A12:  Installation planning and scheduling requirements will be specifically covered in Program Management TD to be awarded after contract award, and separate TDs for groups of installations.  With no proposed Government installation schedule in the RFP, the Government believes it would be premature to require offerors to create IMPs/IMSs at this time.  IMPs and IMSs are envisioned to be part of the Program Management TD and follow-on Installation TDs to be released after contract award.

Q13  The Government seems to have indicated at Industry Day that it wants the contractor to apply for “designation and certification” under the Safety Act.  Did the government intend the contractor to be registering the systems integration services it would be providing under the Guardian SOW as anti-terrorism services? Did the Government foresee the contractor registering the equipment systems (COTS and GFE) to be developed in performance of Guardian for Safety Act protection?  If so, since the systems using the equipment are not yet in existence, how does the Government suggest the systems/equipment be identified in order to complete the information required in a Safety Act application?

A13:  The Government does not have an opinion on whether a contractor should apply for certification under the Safety Act.  This is a process that the contractor has available, by law, should the contractor decide to apply.  The Government will support the process in accordance with Section H, “Safey Act Process”.  

Q14:  Does indemnification granted under the Safety Act to a Lead Services Integrator, as a provider of services, also apply to or flow down to subcontractors and vendors as providers of hardware?

A14:  The Safety Act does not provide indemnification, it limits the technology supplier’s liability; however, for specific applicability, the contractor should pursue this question with DHS.  

Q15:  Where should the information requested under Section L, “INSTRUCTIONS FOR SUBMISSION OF A CONTRACT PRICING PROPOSAL WHEN OTHER THAN COST OR PRICING DATA ARE REQUIRED” on page 66 through 73 be included in our proposal?  Please specify the volume and TAB where you would like to see this material as well as the page limitation for this information.

A15:  Volume V TAB B3, which is now unlimited.  

Q16:  Section L.4.1 specifies that Volume I should “be prepared in accordance with L.2, Instructions for Completion of Solicitation Part I – The Schedule.” These L.2 instructions include completing the CLINS in Section B of the RFP – which would include cost and fee information.  However, later in Section L.4.1, there is a sentence that states, “this document [Volume I] shall not include any cost information.”  Please clarify where we should include the completed RFP Section B in our proposal.

A16:  Fill-in sections of the RFP shall be included in Volume I, General, IAW Section L.4.1.

Q17:  The footnote at the bottom of page 69 (Section L, INSTRUCTIONS FOR SUBMISSION OF A CONTRACT PRICING PROPOSAL WHEN OTHER THAN COST OR PRICING DATA ARE REQUIRED) states:  * 
Examples of Bases:  …For Fee the base might be Labor plus Overhead plus Other Direct Costs.  On page 36 and 37 in Section H, Other Direct Costs are defined as “travel” and “other costs” which includes “material, equipment, reproductions for deliverables, etc.” Section B, Item No 0001 through 0004, states that the fee base excludes travel and materials.  Please clarify if “travel” and “other costs” as defined above are fee bearing or not.

A17:  Both Section L,  INSTRUCTIONS FOR SUBMISSION OF A CONTRACT PRICING PROPOSAL WHEN OTHER THAN COST OR PRICING DATA ARE REQUIRED and the Section H clause OTHER DIRECT COSTS are standard SMDC clauses and speak in general terms.  The example is certainly not meant to imply that the “base” will include specific items of cost, rather it is only, an example to explain what is meant by the data requirement discussed in that clause.  Neither travel nor materials will be fee bearing.

Q18:  In Figure 7 of Section III, Government’s Partial Solution within the Sample Technical Directive for a Family of Systems (FoS) Design document, no locations are shown for radiological detectors, even though they are discussed in the text.  Please specify the location of these detectors.

A18:  The locations and identity of the Radiological detection systems must be determined by the offeror.  Page 23 of the sample TD, detection systems para, will be modified to read:  “the location and identity of chemical and biological detection systems is indicated on the secure area and building site map provided in figure 7.”  The sentence that reads “These include ….detection systems” will be deleted.  

Q19:  The scale in Figure 3 of the Sample Technical Directive for a Family of Systems (FoS) Design document appears to be inconsistent with the other drawings and text.  As a result, we can’t correlate the drawings with one another.  Please clarify the scale for this drawing.

A19:  The scale for figure 1 is changed from 5 km to 15 km.  Delete the reference to miles on the scale.  Delete the distance from the military installation to the city (18miles/29KM’s)  

Q20:  In Section L.1, there are blanks to be completed for identifying our ACO and DCAA representatives. The associated text says the offeror "shall provide" this information. Please clarify where in our proposal you would like this information to be included.
A20:  Fill-in sections of the RFP shall be included in Volume I, General, IAW Section L.4.1.

Q21:  In the Sample TD, page 5, reference is made in the 3rd paragraph to a SECRET document.  Is the data extracted from that document unclassified?
A21:  Yes

Q22:  A significant amount of data is requested for items "c" through "f" under "Instructions for Submission of a Contract Proposal When Other Than Cost or Pricing Data are Required."  Please identify in what volume and tab of the proposal these data are to be included and whether or not these pages will be included in the page count.

A22:  Volume 5, Tab B3, which is now unlimited.

Q23:  Page counts are associated with the sub-tabs of Management TABs A and B.  Should we therefore assume that the statements at the TAB A and TAB B levels are introductory information for the offeror?  In other words, the proposal volume requirements are stated under the sub-TABs with no written proposal material to be provided at TAB A and B?  For example, "put forward mitigation strategies to keep the risk within acceptable limits to ensure successful contract performance" is stated under TAB B but not specified in either TAB B1 or TAB B2.

A23:  Yes, there are no pages associated with TAB A and TAB B.  All written materials should be provided in the subtabs.  Using your example, risk mitigation strategies should be addressed in both TAB B1 and B2.  

Q24:  In L.4.2(a), it states that "The management proposal shall include a description of proposed resources, facilities, equipment, and services, including Government furnished facilities, equipment, services, and information, to be used in accomplishing the requirements of the SOW." The same sentence is in L.4.3 relative to the Technical proposal.  The Management proposal also contains the following sentence: "The management proposal shall contain a description of the contractor's approach to complete all the requirements of the SOW." Please clarify whether the intent is to have (1) all SOW requirements addressed in each of the Management proposal and the Technical proposals or that (2) that all SOW requirements are to be addressed in the Management proposal with the compliance matrix for the Technical proposal showing which requirements are mapped to it.

A24:  The offeror needs to address the applicable management requirements in the management volume and the applicable technical requirements in the technical volume and it will incumbent on the offeror to cover all requirements.

Q25:  Please clarify whether it is acceptable for a SOW and/or Section M requirement to map only to information presented on a Slide.

A25:  The Government wants the SOW and/or Section M requirements mapped to both the written proposals and to the slides.

Q26:  Is single line spacing acceptable within tables, charts, graphs, and diagrams?

A26:  No,  1.5 line spacing must be maintained throughout the proposal.

Q27:  Would the Government consider providing offerors with a status prior to 30 January of which Questionnaires listed on the submitted Attachment 3 spreadsheets have been received?

A27:  The Government will not have any such listing available prior to 30 Jan – in fact, submission of the offeror’s data/spreadsheedt is not due until 30 Jan 04.

Q28:  Will certified cost or pricing data be required to contractually authorize and implement TDs?

A28:  Under the intial CPFF TDs, such will not be required; howevr, when/if TDs are issued on a FFP completion basis, the Government reserves the right to request certifice cost or pricing data. 

Q29:  Should proprietary supplier/subcontractor rate data be submitted directly to the Army PCO or to the cognizant audit agency of the suppliers?

A29:  Proprietary data should be provided to both; See Section L-1, Submission of Proposals.

Q30:  Is the DVD limited to a video of the speaker and the slides or can the DVD include video content in addition to the speaker and the slides, as long as it is not overly elaborate?  L.4.2, TAB D & L.4.3, TAB B2

A30:  The DVD is limited to the speaker and slides.

Q31:  For ease of presentation, can you enlarge a portion of a slide on the DVD only without it counting as an additional slide? L.4.2, TAB D & L.4.3, TAB B2

A31:  Yes it is acceptable to enlarge a portion of a slide, however all of the information presented must conform to the requirements of L3 (4), L.4.2, TAB D & L.4.3, TAB B2

Q32:  Does it require 4 or 12 people per shift to maintain the antenna array?  (Sample TD)

A32:  On page 11 of the sample TD, it defines a total of 12 people.  4 people per shift for three 8-hour shifts.

Q33:  On page 11, the requirement is for 2 military personnel in the EOC.  On page 15, it states 3 of which 2 must be military.  Please clarify. (Sample TD)

A33:  On page 11, the sample TD will be modified to read, “the EOC has two military and one civilian personnel on duty during operational hours.”  On page 15, the sample TD will be modified to read, “ the EOC has 3 personnel, 2 military and 1 civilian.”  

Q34:  Is HAZMAT gear for the firefighters the same as IPE? (Sample TD)

A34:  HAZMAT gear includes IPE.

Q35:  Do offsite responders get IPE from Guardian?  If so, how many? (Sample TD)

A35:  For the purposes of the proposal, the sample TD assumes that all offsite responders are already provided with the appropriate IPE

Q36:  On page 2, it states "Computationally based analysis using geo-physical modeling or simulation tools is not required in the formulation of the design solution."  On page 3, it states, " Use science based principles to support the FoS final design."  Please clarify, as these statements seem contradictory. (Sample TD)

A36:  The technical approach to define the offeror’s solution does not necessarily require computationally based analysis using geo-physical modeling or simulation tools.

Q37:  Under Detection Systems in the Government's Partial Solution, it states that:  "A combination of chemical, biological, and radiological detector systems will be deployed around and within the secure area and operated 24/7 to provide both detect-to-warn (chemical and radiological) and detect-to-treat (biological) detection capability.  The location and identity of each detection system is indicated on the secure area and building site map provided in Figure 7. Figure 7 does not show the location of the radiological detection systems.  Please provide the locations for the radiological systems. (Sample TD)

A37:  The locations and identity of the Radiological detection systems must be determined by the offeror.  Page 23 of the sample TD, detection systems para, will be modified to read:  “the location and identity of chemical and biological detection systems is indicated on the secure area and building site map provided in figure 7.”  The sentence that reads “These include ….detection systems” will be deleted.

Q38:  Does the LSI need to provide ILS support for CBRN equipment already installed at base? (Sample TD)

A38:  For the purposes of the sample TD, the LSI will provide ILS support for all CBRN equipment integrated into the F0S.

Q39:  Are there any CBRN detectors in the building? (Sample TD)

A39:  No

Q40:  What is the metric to define "limited recovery?" In the ISA

A40:  Limited recovery refers to the actions and activities (primarily decontamination) required to reestablish essential functions to support critical military operations.

Q41:  Could you advise on the intent for including Huntsville for labor rate costing.  Schedule B would be priced based on the individual bidder's real company locations (indirect and direct rates) and the sample TD would require a duplication of the pricing build up and related support for rates which will never actually be realized.  Does the statement intend to reflect that the base is in Huntsville for estimating travel purposes?  If Huntsville labor rates are indeed to be used, we will comply.
A41:  For travel estimating purposes, the base is located in Huntsville.  The offeror should, however, use the same rate philosophy in the TD pricing as utilized to develop the pricing in Schedule B.

Q42:  The contracting officer has indicated that proposals made contingent on incorporation of indemnification under PL 85-804 shall be considered non-responsive.  This Contractor is processing the request and anticipates submission to your office by 12 January 04, yet continues to be concerned with the processing time and required approval by the Secretary of the Army.   It is important that all of the competitors have the contracting officer's firm commitment to conduct an expeditious review, supporting those requests with appropriate justification, and forwarding requests on to the Secretary as soon as possible but no later than the estimated time of the approval cycle within the Secretary's office to adhere to the proposal due date.  Will the contracting officer offer some other interim risk mitigation to the winning contractor if the indemnification is held up due to administrative delays where an intent to approve the indemnification has been established?   Once the formal indemnification request under PL 85-804 is received by the PCO, what is the estimated timeframe for review and forwarding of the package (assuming sufficient justification documentation is provided) to the Secretary of the Army for processing?  How long will the approval cycle be once received by the Secretary of the Army?    In addition, the FAR states requests go to the contracting officer (50.403-1(a), 50.403-2), please advise if an alternative submission directly to the Secretary of the Army is planned based on comments included in the 15 December 03 SMDC indemnification letter.

A42:  The Contracting Officer will not offer “some other interim risk mitigatin to the winning contractor if the indemnification is held up…”.  Further, there is no guarantee that DA will even consider the contractor’s request for indemnification for the Guardian IP Program.  No direct submissions to the Secretary of the Army are allowed. We have no guidelines concerning the specific timelines once the package reaches DA, however, we have been advised that the process takes a minimum of six months. 

Q43:  The Government verbally indicated at the business industry day (Dec 10, 03) that the number of bases and estimated hours are for pricing evaluation purposes only for award of a technical directive contract.   Will the PCO send a written notification that the Government acknowledges the Sample TD and Schedule B pricing are for pricing evaluation purposes only and not a firm offer/commitment on the part of the selected contractor?

A43:  No…while the Sample TD is for proposal evaluation only and will never be executed, the Schedule B pricing is for evaluation and will be the basis of the Cost-Plus-Fixed-Fee value established for the resultant contract.  The contract will be a CPFF contract for 2,838,427 DPPHs to be provided as directed by individual TD.

Q44:  ISA-Annex B-contains recommended baseline equipment solution set.  Paragraph in Annex B states that Enclosure 1 (Potential Equipment Solutions) “… were evaluated by the Government and found not to be suitable at this time.”  Please clarify the conflict between Annex B and Enclosure 1 as many of the items of equipment contained in Annex B are also found in Enclosure 1, e.g., Dry Filter Unit.  

A44:  The Government will eliminate the confusion by deleting the following from the introductory para. from Annex B:  “also, these potential CBRN programs and equipment were evaluated and were found not to be suitable at this time.”

Q45:  ISA Annex D-Is the time frame required for confirmatory ID of BW 48 hours from presumptive ID as stated the Baseline/Objective or 48 hours from collection as stated in the rationale.  

A45:  The timeframe for confirmatory BW ID is 48 hours from filter insertion (into the DFU) to confirmation.

Q46:  ISA, STD Will the Government make labs available for DFU testing?

A46:  Yes the Government will be providing regional labs.

Q47:  Sect. L/Q&A In the Questions and Answers, dated 12/24/03, on page 12, it was stated that “Backup cost materials should be placed in Volume 5 Tab B.  However, in the final RFP the only appropriate place seems to be Tab B3.  This information to be inserted in Tab B3 includes all the detailed cost backup requested in Section L, pages 66 through 73 under the heading “Instructions for submission of a Contract Pricing Proposal when other than cost or pricing data are required,” but this Tab has a 5 page limitation.  Does the Government intend Contractors to insert an Annex to any tab for inclusion of the backup cost materials?  If not, where should they be placed?  Where BOEs (Basis of Estimates) should be placed?  On page 84, L.4.5 (c), requires “adequate” information for evaluation which is defined as “…that level of information at which tasks and resources to accomplish the task can be logically identified and evaluated…”

A47:   The Government only wants BOEs for the TD solution; the BOE for the sample TD should be placed in Vol V, TAB C.  The other data requested in pages 66-73 should be included in Volume V Tab B3, which is now unlimited.  

Q48:  Section H, paragraph 4.b. (page 24 of 91) in the final RFP states “The contractor will provide a cost estimate within 24 hours….”.  On page 36 of the Questions and Answers provided on 12/24/03, the Government indicated the RFP would be revised to specify “two business days.”  Has the Government elected to stay within the 24 hours turn around as stated in the RFP?

A48:  Section H, Page 4.b will be modified to indicate two business days.  

Q49:  Sec H, TD Procedure Question relates to clarifying what work scope is anticipated for “System Modernization” and where this effort is described in the SOW.  Sec H, paragraph for TD Procedures says each TD will be broken out into Site Assessment & Design, Equip Install & Field, Install Exercise, ILS, and System Modernization.  Is system modernization included in SOW C.2.12, Contractor Market Research, as the possible retrofitting of completed installation?  If this is not the case, please define work effort to be conducted for system modernization.  

A49:  The work effort for system modifications will be defined by separate TD.  Retrofitting would be approved by the Government and identified by separate TD.

Q50:  Sec H, TD Procedure, d., Page 31 of 97 Question relates to clarifying where the Continuous Optimization work scope is described in the SOW.  Paragraph d. for Section H, TD Procedure, states the Government intends to award a separate TD for Continuous Optimization.  Is this effort included in SOW paragraph C.2.6 (Eng Supt) and C.2.12 (Market Research)?  

A50:  Yes this effort is included in the SOW par C.2.6 and C.2 .12.

Q51:  CDRL #002 In the Exhibit V "Contract Data Requirements List", CDRL Item #002, Disaster Preparedness Exercise Evaluation Report, appears to be due at proposal submittal.  As this report is typically prepared after a site-specific installation and exercise, can you please clarify if this document is required at time of proposal submittal?

A51:  This document is not required until after the completion of the exercise.

Q52:  L, TAB A4 Given that the FAR 52.219-9 (d) referenced in this section requires small business percentage to be of total dollars planned to be subcontracted for placement to small business and Section L, TAB A4 states the small business percentage is of total contract value, can the contractor assume the FAR clause referenced takes precedence over the conflict in text?

A52:  No, the FAR 52.219-9 is a mandatory clause, however, this RFP (and resultant contract) has higher-than-statutorily-required subcontracting goals for small business community.

Q53:  Section I, pg 72, para l., Section XI Please confirm that the detailed subcontractor information required for the $10M/10% of the contract price threshold or certification threshold amount ($550K) is only required to be provided for the Schedule B pricing evaluation and does not require a separate submittal for the Sample TD should the pricing include subcontractor content exceeding 10% of the prime contractor's total contract price or exceeds the $550,000 certification threshold.

A53:  Such is required for Schedule B pricing only; the sample TD pricing shall, however, track to the methodology utilized for Schedule B.

Q54:  Section L.4.5 and M.1, paragraph entitled Teams-Question relates to the difference between the term partners and subcontractors.  Section M distinguishes and requires teaming agreements.  However, Section L.4.5 only states subcontractors. Please clarify the difference so bidders can ensure appropriate level of compliance to L.4.5 and Section L, TAB B1.

A54:  For the purpose of this solicitation, partners and subcontractors are synonomous.

Q55:  L.3 (11) With respect to the requirement that the font used in “tables, charts, graphs, and figures …. shall be no smaller than 12-point Times New Roman,” we want to verify that we will be compliant if we follow established government/industry practice and use a 11-point sans serif font (such as Arial or Helvetica) in our figures, since 11-point sans serif fonts are sized the same as 12-point Times New Roman.  (Although it may seem counter-intuitive, using the larger 12-point font inside figures actually makes them less readable and visually more difficult to interpret.).  Sample Times New Roman – Guardian Proposal.  Sample Sans Serif Font -Guardian Proposal
A55:  11-point Sans serif font is not allowable.  See para L.3 (4).

Q56:  Does the JPMG definition of a Decision Support System (DSS) include both Command & Control (C2) and Consequence Management functions, or just Consequence Management?  In other words, does the JPMG envision the DSS to interface directly with sensors, or interface to a C2 component which provides the interface to the sensors?

A56:  Yes, DSS include both C2 and Consequence Management. See SOW C.2.7 C4I Integration and C.2.7.2 CBRN DSS.

Q57:  Will the Government provide prices, part numbers, and vendors for equipment listing?

A57:  Post award, the Government will provide technical data for all GFE.

Q58:  L.4 (11)Section L.4 (11) states "Each printed side of a fold out shall count as one page."  Please clarify if "side" means the front and back of a single page, or the left and right of a folded page.

A58:  A fold out with printing on front and back would be two pages.  A fold out with printing on just the front would be one page.

Q59:  SOW Paragraphs C.2.5 (page 8) and C.2.9.1 (page 10); IPP Overarching Test Concept Plan Paragraphs 2.3.f (page 6 of OTCP) and 9, LSI Bullet (page 15 of OTCP):        The Overarching Test Concept Plan, paragraph 2.3.f (page 6) and paragraph 9, LSI bullet, (page 15) state that "For one-year after fielding, the LSI will operate and maintain all of the FoS except the first responder equipment, which the LSI will only maintain."   The SOW states that the LSI will conduct training and be responsible for sustainment for one year.  In each case the subject of sustainment is mentioned, the implication is that this sustainment is limited to maintenance, repair, sparing, etc.  SOW paragraph C.2.5 (page 8) states "The Contractor shall maintain all integrated Contractor-Acquired Property and Government-Furnished Property/Equipment in an operational state for the one-year sustainment period following acceptance at each individual installation."  The SOW does not include the requirement to "operate" during the sustainment period.  In fact, to operate during this one-year period would greatly increase the cost of support.  Please clarify if you want the LSI to operate the equipment during the one-year sustainment period.

A59:  Yes, The LSI will operate and maintain the FoS equipment.  

Q60:  Sample Technical Directive for a FoS Design:  Was it the Government’s intent not to specify the type of chemical detector for the partial solution.

A60:  Yes.

Q61:  Sample Technical Directive for a FoS Design:  Does the Government’s partial solution include any details about detector placement and mounting not included in the document provided?

A61:  No.

Q62:  Sample Technical Directive for a Family of Systems (FoS) Design:  Would the Government please provide the rationale for why was VLSTRACK selected to do biological and chemical releases rather than HPAC?

A62:  VLSTRACK is accredited by DoD to model CB attacks such as those chosen for the IPP.  HPAC has not been accredited by DoD for hazard prediction of CB attacks on US military forces.  HPAC is the DoD accepted standard for radiological hazard prediction.

Q63:  Sample Technical Directive for a FoS Design:  What versions of HPAC and VLSTRACK are being used?

A63:  The latest versions issued by NSWC (VLSTRACK 3.0.2) and DTRA (HPAC 4.0.3) were used.  These models can only be issued to DoD, Federal Agencies or contractors with an existing DoD contract, which requires their use.  The intent of this Sample Technical Directive is to give the responder the opportunity to demonstrate their understanding of the technical issues and available tools and is not intended to require use of tools that can not be made available to you at this time..  

Q64:  Sample Technical Directive for a FoS Design:  Were the site and modeling control parameters (weather, etc.) that were used in VLSTRACK simulation of for the biological and chemical releases the same values utilized in HPAC for the RDD plume?  What parameters were used to describe the release (e.g., Mass of Load, Altitude, Initial Size, Mass-Mean Diameter, Sigma D, Dissemination Efficiency, Agent Purity, Dry Fraction, Release Mass)?  Will the Government make a listing of the input files available?

A64:  The threat profiles provided are representative and demonstrative only.  Though they may be used as presented to estimate the base threat scenario for a specific site, higher fidelity approaches would use these as starting points.  Specific release parameters for weapon’s releases would be classified.  All relevant data and information will be made available to the LSI to support specific installation related technical directives.

Q65:  Sample Technical Directive for a FoS Design:  Figure 6 SK-3 Building and Floor Plan (page 22) is missing North orientation arrow on map.  Please confirm that the orientation is the same as in Figure 5.

A65:  Yes.

Q66:  Sample Technical Directive for a FoS Design:  On page 4 it is stated “JPMG assumed an appropriate level of physical security that would prevent entry of quantities that would result in catastrophic events.”  Does this assumed level of physical protection also preclude penetration of the site via airspace?  Does this assumed level of physical protection also preclude penetration of the site via the river that runs through the site?

A66:  Yes to both questions.

Q67:  Sample Technical Directive for a FoS Design:  The following questions refer to the HPAC input:  Which option was utilized in HPAC?  Pre-Defined Small Device User Specified Device?  If User Specified Device was selected, what were the values for HE Mass?    Which form was selected for Cesium-137?  Which was selected and what was the value entered?  Material Mass?  Material Activity?  What was the value entered for Calculation Radius?   What was the value entered for Exposure Duration?  What Cloud Dose option was selected?

A67:  The User Specified Device setting was used. However, the specific values of HE mass and type of Cesium-137 (CeCl was used and the maximum credible radiological values were used) are not necessary to demonstrate knowledge and understanding of the issues and tasks associated with this Sample Technical Directive. The threat profiles provided are representative only and not intended to be the sole criteria upon which to base design decisions.  For the Sample TD, responders are free to examine these issues to demonstrate their depth of understanding of CBR threats and defense systems, as well as the analysis issues and tools.  Exposure duration is not solely a function of the threat profile and therefore must be derived.  Cloud Dose is given in the chart legend and calculation radius is derivable from the graphic though not needed, depending upon the design approach.  

Q68:  Will any data developed, transmitted, or stored on any part of the IT system/network be classified?  If so, please define operational needs in data classification.

A68:  Classification of data to be transmitted or stored will be determined on a case-by-case basis and defined in the site specific TD.

Q69:  Are there any interfaces to other DoD systems that are classified?  At what levels?

A69:  Interfaces to other DoD systems will be determined on a case-by-case basis and defined in the site specific TD.

Q70:  Will DITSCAP certification and accreditation be required?  If so, what type certification is acceptable?

A70:  Yes-- certification and accreditation will be the Government’s responsibility.

Q71:  Section L, C. Section III, page 67 requests cost information by Contractor Fiscal Year; however, section L.2 requests pricing by Government Fiscal Year.  Given the variance of CFYs, wouldn’t it be preferable to standardize all pricing inputs by GFY?

A71:  Pricing/Cost data is now by Calendar Year; convert to Government Fiscal Year only when completing Section B.  

Q72:  In section L, page 66 of the final RFP, under “Instructions for Submission of a Contract Pricing Proposal When Other Than Cost of Pricing Data are Required,” a significant amount of data is required.  Given the page limitations imposed by the RFP, would it be acceptable to receive this information as an appendix outside the existing page restrictions?

A72:  No.  Page limitation remains the same.

Q73:  The solicitation letter states a base period of 36 months for GFY 04 – GFY 06; however, there are only 5 months and two weeks remaining in GFY 04 assuming an April 19th start date.  Please clarify.

A73:  The base period of performance remains 36 months.  We have added CY 2010 to the Section L instructions.

Q74:  On page 84, Section L.4.5, Tab B1, information is requested for the LSI and subcontractors, with a one-page limit.  As the prime of a team of subcontractors, are we correct in assuming that this is to be interpreted as a one-page limit per subcontractor?

A74:  Requested information is required for both the LSI and subcontractors; this tab is now unlimited.

Q75:  Given the page restrictions imposed by the RFP, is it the Government’s intent to receive the model contract (Section B and supporting documentation) as an appendix outside the page restrictions?

A75:  The “fill-ins”, including Section B, are to be provided in the General Volume as stated in L.4.1 and cost support documents go in Volume 5 Tab B3, which is now unlimited.

Q76:  The terminology, “Critical mission operations/functions/personnel,” and “Essential mission operations/functions/personnel,” are used in Annex D.  Is there a difference between critical and essential?  If so, please define the terms.

A76:  Critical missions and essential functions will vary by installations.  A critical mission is defined as a mission so important to a base that a FoS must provide continued operations.  These operations must continue to the maximum extent possible during a CBRN event.  An essential mission is defined as a mission that should be restored as soon as possible after a CBRN event.  

Q77:  Section L states that the purpose of TAB B2, General Business Innovations, is to demonstrate efficiencies of the past. In Section M, Evaluation Criteria, M.2.1, Subfactor II, 3 and 4, Innovative Business Practices (IBP) the criteria require that offerors describe IBPs at installations.  Does the Government wish to see IPBs that will provide efficiencies at installations in TAB B2?

A77:  Yes, Use Tab B2 to define IBPs.

Q78:  Paragraph 2.3.f on page 6 of Exhibit IV (Installation Protection Program (IPP) Overarching Test Concept Plan) to the RFP, states in part that “the IPP FoS is expected to operate continuously after installation…It will be operated and maintained primarily by contractor and government personnel…For one-year after fielding, the LSI will operate and maintain all of the FoS except the first responder equipment, which the LSI will only maintain. The installation will be responsible for operation and maintenance after this period.”

A78:  Noted, however, no apparent question. 

Q79:  This requirement for one year of operation after installation by the LSI is not reflected in the sustainment portion of the SOW. Please clarify what is the Government’s intent for the LSI’s role in “operation” of the FoS for one year after fielding.   If there is a conflict between the Sample Technical Directive (TD) and other documents in the solicitation, can we assume that the Sample TD takes precedence?

A79:  The LSI will provide maintenance of the FoS during the one-year sustainment period but the IPP FoS will be operated by



installation personnel, with the exception of the biological detection (DFU) capability.  (The contractor will provide the routine 

filter change, packaging, shipment, and posting of laboratory results during the first year for the DFU.)  Maintenance will consist of periodic inspection of the FoS to ensure proper performance.  If performance is degraded, the maintainer will repair or replace as appropriate.  LSI operations will not consist of operating collective protection, performing medical surveillance, monitoring computer terminals, or performing Emergency Response.  Initial spares, including LRUs for GOTS, will be GFE.  In regards to the sample TD, the offeror should describe what functions the LSI will operate and maintain, and what functions the installation will operate and maintain.  The sample TD does not take precedence over the SOW.  See modified Section C.2.9.1.

Q80:  In the Sample TD, Section G, Fire Department (page 16), it is unclear as to which fire department is being referred to in the last two sentences. Is it correct to assume it is referring to the Off-Site Fire Department?

A80:  Yes, the last three sentences in the sample TD, section G, Fire Department refer to the offsite Fire Department.

Q81:  Annex B and its enclosures provide several lists of GOTS and COTS equipment.  Should bidders assume that the equipment (e.g., sensors) to be used in their solution to the Sample TD should only be drawn from the list in Enclosure 2, which is described as “Initial recommended COTS for use in the Installation Protection Program?”

A81:  Enclosures 1 and 2 of Annex B are not all-inclusive lists for IPP equipment solutions.  The offeror is free to select equipment from other sources as long as it is not a developmental item, and independent testing (preferably Government) verifies the system performance.  

Q82:  For Annex B, Recommended Baseline Equipment Solution Set:  Sentry is the only DSS listed.  Will the government accept another GOTS/COTS DSS to be provided as GFE for the Sample TD?  Has Sentry already been selected as the COTS DSS to be provided as GFE for the overall Guardian Program?

A82:  The Government does not have a pre-selected DSS as part of this acquisition.  If the LSI/JPMG select a GOTS DSS then it will be GFE and if COTS DSS is selected it will be LSI procured.  

Q83:  Section C.2.8.3, Training, Planning, and Exercises, states:  “The Contractor shall design, develop, conduct and evaluate one tabletop exercise and one installation‑wide exercise for each installation and provide an evaluation report with lessons learned and recommendations for future enhancement.  The exercises will be conducted at the completion of system fielding and CONOPS development.  The exercises will assist the installation commander and staff in developing their ability to respond to a WMD event with the IPP capability.”  (CDRL A002)   The Guardian Installation Protection Program Initial systems Architecture (ISA), Part IV, IPP Program Support Consideration, IPP FoS Exercise, states: “The LSI will recommend a certification process for the IPP FoS and develop a Situational Training Exercise (STX) to implement the certification.  The STX will be tailored to the installation’s IPP FoS.  The evaluation package will include an exercise director’s guide, in addition to a training and evaluation outline for the tasks.”  Can the Government confirm that the tabletop/installation-wide exercises in Section C and the Situational Training Exercise are the same?

A83:  Yes, Situational Training Exercise (STX) is the same as Installation wide exercise.

Q84:  As described in Enclosure 2 to Annex B, GOTS & COTS components, we assume that any changes required as a result of the Technical Directive Collective Protection system will be funded by the Government.  This includes filtration systems, HVAC system modifications, entry/exit vestibules, and limited building modifications.  Could the Government confirm that this assumption is correct?

A84:  The contract is a CPFF.  The contractor will be provided a TD with an NTE for an installation, and his design will be based upon that TD.

Q85:  In Section C.2.8.2, Fielding and Installation, paragraph 2, the term “resident training” is unclear.  Please define this term.

A85:  Resident training and new equipment training are one in the same.

Q86:  Will the Government provide FAR 45.5 and associated Government property clauses that are not provided in the solicitation?

A86:  See www.arnet.gov as stated in the RFP.

Q87:  The GOTS to be used in production may already be spoken for.  Does the JPO have an order placed for the GOTS to be provided in the Guardian program?

A87:  The Government will order GOTS items with long lead times, and the remainder of GOTS will be ordered when the LSI design and equipment has been validated.

Q88:  RFP Reference: Section J, DD Form 1707, Page 52-DD Form 1707 in box 3, Instructions, references SF 18.  It doesn’t appear



that the RFP contains SF 18.  Please clarify the requirement for filling in SF 18.  

A88:  That section of the DD Form 1707 is standard/non-editable and includes examples of the type of “fill in” forms that might be

 

included in the RFP.  For this particular solicitation, an SF 18 is not required.
Q89:  RFP Reference: Standard Form 33, Page NA - Box 5 of this form indicates the RFP was released on 24 Dec 2003.  The RFP

 

was posted on 30 Dec 2003 to the Guardian web site.  Please clarify the correct issuance date.  

A89:  It was released in our system on 24 Dec and posted on the webpage on 30 Dec.  For any item the offeror needs to reference the

 
actual release date, it should be 24 Dec 03 as stated on the RFP document itself.

Q90:  RFP Reference: L.4.1  Volume I – General, Page 78- The general volume will consist of the actual offer (prepared in accordance with L.2, Instructions for the Completion of Solicitation Part I - The Schedule, as set forth above) to enter into a contract to perform the desired work.  It will include a table of contents for the overall proposal, an Executive Summary of the overall proposal, Section K, Representations, Certifications, and Other Statements of Offerors, as well as all other RFP sections requiring fill-in completion by the offeror, Amendment(s) Acknowledgement(s), identification of technical data and computer software which the contractor intends to provide with limited rights or restricted rights, any and all exceptions to or deviations from the terms and conditions of the RFP from either the prime or the subcontractor, and an acronym listing.  Question:  This requirement states that the offeror shall include “all other RFP sections requiring fill-in completion by the offeror…”.  Please clarify if this requirement includes any fill-in which are associated with the Section I, Contract Clauses.  If the offeror is required to provide fill-ins for Section I, please provide the particular FAR clauses which are required.  

A90:  The General Volume is the appropriate location for any and all “fill-ins” whether portions of the RFP, such as Section K, Reps

and Certs, or Section I clauses which require a “fill-in” by the offeror.  As each potential offeror is unique, it is the responsibility of each offeror to determine which, if any, of the Section I clauses require “fill-in” data for his proposal.

Q91:  RFP Reference: L.4.1  Volume I – General, Page 78 -This requirement states that the offeror shall identify all “technical data and computer software which the contractor intends to provide with limited rights or restricted rights …”.  Section I includes FAR 52.227-15 and DFAR 252.227-7017 which also require the offeror to provide similar data.  Is the offerors required to respond to both requirements?  If not, please clarify which requirement (L.4.1 or FAR/DFAR clauses) that the offeror should provide a response.  Please clarify if the response to this requirement counts against the page limitation for Volume 1.  

A91:  FAR 52.227-15 is not applicable and will be deleted.  DFARS 252.227-7017 must be complied with.  

Q92:  RFP Reference: Section D, Page NA- The RFP appears to be missing Section D.   Please clarify.

A92:  Section D was intentionally left blank as it is not required.

Q93:  RFP Reference: L.4.1  Volume I – General, Page 78- The general volume will consist of the actual offer (prepared in accordance with L.2, Instructions for the Completion of Solicitation Part I - The Schedule, as set forth above) to enter into a contract to perform the desired work.  It will include a table of contents for the overall proposal, an Executive Summary of the overall proposal, Section K, Representations, Certifications, and Other Statements of Offerors, as well as all other RFP sections requiring fill-in completion by the offeror, Amendment(s) Acknowledgement(s), identification of technical data and computer software which the contractor intends to provide with limited rights or restricted rights, any and all exceptions to or deviations from the terms and conditions of the RFP from either the prime or the subcontractor, and an acronym listing.  The Executive Summary will provide an overview of the offeror's organization and general approach to meeting the requirements of the solicitation.  The Executive Summary should identify pertinent aspects of the proposed approach including teaming approaches, if any, subcontracting, and relevant corporate experience and expertise on similar programs, and should also highlight particular advantages or unique approaches of the proposal.  This document shall not include any cost information.  The page limitation is five (5) pages excluding table of contents, representations and certifications, other fill‑in portions of the RFP; copies of contractor acknowledgments of RFP amendments, and signed teaming arrangements/letter(s) of commitment.  In the absence of a signed teaming arrangement or letters of commitment, the offer and each partner and/or subcontractor must sign the Executive Summary. Selection for award is predicated upon determination of responsibility of the Contracting Officer.  Such determination will be made in accordance with FAR 9.104 and will utilize at a minimum documents submitted in this Volume I.  Question: The second sentence in L.4.1 provides for what is to be included in Volume 1.  The fifth sentence makes reference to signed teaming arrangement/letters.  Please clarify that teaming arrangement/letters are required in Volume 1.  

A93:  L4.1 page 78 states page limitation is 5 pages, excluding teaming arrangements.

Q94:  RFP Reference: L.2 Instructions for Completion of Solicitation Part I , Page 74- The section states the offeror should “Assume a 19 April 2004 award date.” and “Assume CLIN 0001 covers GFY04, GFY05, and GFY06; CLIN 0002 covers GFY07; CLIN 0003 covers GFY08; and CLIN 0004 covers GFY09.”   These requirements don’t appear to agree considering a 19 April 2004 award date and a 36 month base period of performance, CLIN 0001 would go beyond GFY06.  Please clarify.  

A94:  The base period of performance remains 36 months and the RFP will be revised to include performance into GFY10.

Q95:  RFP Reference: L.2 Instructions for Completion of Solicitation Part I  and Attachment 5, Draft list of Sites, Page74- Assume the following schedule:

- Completion of 5 locations in GFY04 (2.5%)

- Completion of 30 locations in GFY05 (15%)

- Completion of 30 locations in GFY06 (15%)

- Completion of 40 locations in GFY07 (20%)

- Completion of 45 locations in GFY08 (22.5%)

- Completion of 50 locations in GFY09 (25%)

Question:

Section L.2, provides for 5 locations in GFY04 and Attachment 5 provides 15 locations for GFY04.  These appear to conflict.  Please clarify.  

A95:  Section L.2, provides for 5 locations in GFY04 for proposal preparation.  Attachment 5 indicated 15 locations that are currently funded for GFY04.

Q96:  RFP Reference:  FAR 52.203-11, Page 53- This FAR clause requires the offeror to complete Standard Form - LLL, Disclosure of Lobbying Activities.  Where in the offeror’s proposal should this be included?  

A96:  In the General Volume with all other “fill in”/contractor-completed documentation.

Q97:  RFP Reference:  L.2 (4), Page 75- Assume the CLIN 0001 DPPHs are spread evenly across each GFY within that CLIN.  Spread the total number of Professional DPPHs equally among the 24 Professional Government Labor Categories (GLCs).  Similarly, spread the total number of Administrative DPPHs equally among the 11 Administrative Professional GLCs.  Question:  Please confirm that the sentences, which read “Spread the total number of Professional DPPHs equally among the 24 Professional Government Labor Categories (GLCs).  Similarly, spread the total number of Administrative DPPHs equally among the 11 Administrative Professional GLCs” applies to CLINS 0001, 0002, 0003, and 0004.

A97:  Yes, spread the total number of DPPHs equally between the 24 Professional and 11 Administrative categories, for CLINS 0001, 0002, 0003, AND 0004.

Q98:  RFP Reference:- Section -- Paragraph Number -- Title: _L.4.5 Volume V-Cost Proposal, Page 85.  (Tab C) "Pricing Structure to the Sample TD.  Submit pricing data to demonstrate an understanding of the nature and costing requirements of the solution to the sample TD.  The offeror should demonstrate an understanding of what is needed to complete the TD effectively in the labor mix and pricing of the requirement, and demonstrate cost realism in the logical and appropriate use of labor categories to meet the requirements of the TD.  Question:  The Sample TD requires the development of the design of a FoS which addresses 4 threat scenarios. The TD does not talk about site survey( which has been completed by the Government), fielding and installation,  exercises, and logistics (sustainment). Although training, testing, exercises, logistics will be part of the FoS for the TD, pricing is not specifically addressed.  In the discussion of TD procedure (Technical Directive Procedure, page 30, Section H) it calls for each TD to include site assessment and design; equipment installation and fielding; installation exercise; integrated logistics support; and system modernization. This same section identifies that a separate TD will be executed for Program Management and system modernization.  Since it will not be possible to address pricing for installation and fielding, exercises, and logistics support until the system design is complete.  It is not clear how a TD for an installation will be priced to include all the above elements.  What is the government’s expectation regarding the elements to be priced in the Sample TD outside of design and integrated logistics support?

A98:  Assume Government has approved your final design, and cost all aspects of the TD from initial design, thru one year of ILS support.  Do not cost system modernization.  

Q99:  RFP Reference: Section H – Technical Directive Procedure, b., Page  30 and, Section -- Paragraph Number -- Title: Attachment VI.  CDRLs, Data Item No. A011 (FMHER), Attach VI.  Section H Technical Directive Procedure b.  Technical Directives will be issued by the Technical Monitor to the contractor incorporating (i) the specific effort to be performed; (ii) the required deliverables; (ie) the required delivery dates or overall period of performance; (iv) any Government-furnished property; and, (v) the Not-To-Exceed (NTE) amounts for travel and materials, if applicable.  Contract Line Item Number 0001, Installation Protection Program (IPP) Activity, as well as CLINs 0002, 0003, and 0004, if awarded, will be broken out in each TD to include site assessment and design; equipment installation and fielding; installation exercise; integrated logistics support; and system modernization.  Deliverables may consist of plans, charts, reports, briefing notes, tabulations, view graphs, computer software, materials, and presentations, as appropriate.  Section -- Paragraph Number -- Title: Attachment VI.  CDRLs, Data Item No. A011 (FMHER), Attach VI.  “Data shall be provided at the Contract Level, the TD level, and Major Element Level (i.e. Site Design; Equipment Installation and Fielding; Installation Exercise; Integrated Logistics Support; and System Modernization)……..Question:  Since the TDs will break out the five elements, and we have to report by the five elements, will we need to price the Sample TD by element?  

A99:  Yes, except for system modernization which does not need to be costed.

Q100:  RFP Reference: Section L.4.2 Paragraph Number TAB A4 Title: Master Subcontracting Plan, and LSI Specific Subcontracting Plan, Page 80. Master Subcontracting Plan and LSI Specific Subcontracting Plan. This section shall include an efficient, realistic, and cost effective approach to execute subcontracts including the proposed approach for qualifying potential subcontractors, pricing evaluation, selection criteria, and subcontracting administration. Include the offeror’s LSI‑specific small business goals.  With regard to FAR 52.219-9(d)(1) and (2), the subcontracting goals should be no less than 23% of the total contract value  (5% for small disadvantaged business (including historically black colleges or universities/minority institutions, 5% for women‑owned small businesses, 3% for veteran‑owned small businesses, including Service‑disabled veteran small businesses, 3% for HUB Zone businesses, and 7% for other small businesses.)  Minimum content requirements for the plan are addressed in FAR 52.219-9.  (LIMITED TO 5 PAGES IN ADDITION TO MASTER SUBCONTRACTING PLAN). Question: FAR 52.219.9 does not require businesses to maintain a Master Subcontracting plan regardless of business size.  How should an offeror respond to this requirement if they do not maintain a Master Subcontracting plan?

A100:  Include one page under TAB A4 stating that Offeror does not maintain a Master Subcontracting Plan and also include your

 
NTE 5-page LSI-specific Subcontracting Plan.

Q101:  RFP Reference: Section L, Paragraph 4.4, Volume IV – Relevant Present and Past Performance, Page  83. “This information shall be submitted on an Excel spreadsheet (see Attachment 3) with the Contract Number; Task Order Number, if applicable; Government Points of Contact (technical, management, and contractual), including name, address, telephone number, and email address; the title of the effort; the contract value; and the period of performance.  In addition, the offeror must provide a brief narrative addressing relevant experience for each contract.”  Question: The spreadsheet (file “Dec 13 Attachment 3 - Section L, Contract Information Spreadsheet  1800.xls”, as released 30 Dec., 2003) does not indicate the desired location of the “brief overview” that appears to be required within this spreadsheet. Where in the spreadsheet should the narrative be placed, and is the narrative limited in length?

A101:  Narratives are to be placed in the 5 pages.

Q102:  RFP Reference:  Section -- Paragraph Number -- Title: Attachment 3 (Contract Information Spreadsheet), Page N/A. Attachment 3 (Dec 13 Attachment 3 - Section L, Contract Information Spreadsheet 1800.xls) lists management, technical, and contracting POCs. The questionnaires themselves (in section 1g) appear to require Technical and Contractual POCs. Answers in the Q&A release said, “Section L has been changed to reflect past performance questionnaires only being sent to the Contracting Officer.” Question:  To avoid confusion in distribution, please verify which POCs should receive questionnaire material.

A102:  The Past Performance Questionnaires are sent to the Contracting Officer listed in the excel spreadsheet IAW Section L.4.4;



however, the Contracting Officer should coordinate with the technical and management POCs provided in the spreadsheet.

Q103:  RFP Reference: SF 33 Solicitation, Offer and Award (Cover page to RFP) Block 1. Question: Contract DPAS ratings (DO or DX) ensure the timely availability of industrial resources to meet current National Defense and Emergency Preparedness requirements and provide an operating systems to support rapid industrial response in a national emergency.  No DPAS rating is indicated in Block 1. Will there be a DPAS rating and what is it anticipated to be – DO or DX?

A103:  No DPAS rating is currently assigned to the Guardian IPP program; however, Guardian is pursuing a DPAS rating of DO-C3.  

Q104:  RFP Reference: Section L INSTRUCTIONS FOR SUBMISSION OF CONTRACT PRICING PROPOSAL when.....page 67 Page 67   b. Section II:  Provide the following information on the first page of your pricing proposal – (Followed by a list of 12 items) Question: It would be apparent that the information requested on page 67 would be the first page of the volume followed by the information requested on page 84.  Is this information is to be included in the page counts of the Cost Volume Tab A, B, C or none of the above?  If the answer is none of the above, do we have a page limitation on these two information requests?
A104:  The data requested in pages 66-73 should be included in Volume V, Tab B3, which is now unlimited.  

Q105:  RFP Reference:  Section L.4.5 Volume V - Cost Proposal,  Page 84  (a)  In the front of the Cost Proposal, provide the following subcontractor information:

- A list of subcontractors and their addresses

- The anticipated percentage of total LSI effort allocated to each subcontractor

- The anticipated start date, if other than 19 Apr 2004 (This appears to be before Tab A)

Question: Is all the pricing data in Section I thru Section XIV (starting on page 66) before Tab A (This is where they have provided sample tables)?  Is there a page limitation for this data?  What is the Government's interest with respect to inclusion of the data required by the reference?  Under what tab in the cost volume is it to be included?

A105:  The data requested in pages 66-73 should be included in Volume V, Tab B3, which is now unlimited.  The above requested subcontractor data should be included at the front of Tab B3.  

Q106:  RFP Reference: Section: M.2.1 Subfactor II, Integrated Logistics Support, Sustainment Planning, and Innovative Business Practices, Page:  88, paragraph 3.  Question.  The final sentence of paragraph 3 introduces four elements, the first two elements related to logistics support and the final two (elements 3 and 4) related to innovative business practices.  Does the Government mean that all four elements should be addressed within the context of Innovative Business Practices?  Should there be a paragraph beginning with …”The offeror shall describe the following elements:” allowing the first two to be discussed within the context of Integrated Logistics Support and the final two within the context of Innovative Business Practices?

A106:  The first two elements are to be discussed within the context of Integrated Logistics Support and the final two elements within the context of Innovative Business Practices.  See Section L Vol II TAB B1 and TAB B2.

Q107:  RFP Reference: Section: L Instructions for submissions of a contractor pricing proposal when other than Cost or Pricing data is required, Pages: 66-73.  Question.  Please clarify where in the proposal should the data requested in this section (pages 66-73) be included.  Also are there any page limitation requirements applicable to this information?  

A107:  The data requested in pages 66-73 should be included in Volume V, Tab B3, which is now unlimited.  

Q108:  Is the NTE amount listed unders CLINS 0001, 0002, 0003 and 0004 for materials and travel meant to be the actual amount used by all competitors in order to level the competition and minimize unknowns?
A108:  These NTE amounts are to be used by all offerors and are inclusive of all indirect costs, including appropriate G&A and material handling fees.
Q109:  Does the term "Material" listed in CLINs 0001, 0002, 0003 and 0004 include equipment such as that specified in Annex B?
A109:  Yes; materials include all COTS equipment items.
Q110:  It is not clear if we are to price the Annex B equipment lists for GOTS and COTS, please clarify
A110:  We are looking for COTS pricing in relation to the sample technical directive.  For the overall portion, you have a NTE for COTS (i.e., materials).  The Government will provide the GOTS as GFE; therefore, those items will not be priced.
Q111:  For companies that do not normally use Facilities Capital Cost of Money, the only method to recover banking costs is in their contract fee.  In light of this, we request that fee be permitted on the COTS equipment solution set items
A111:  You are permitted to bill for materials, including G&A and material handling fees; no profit will be permitted for COTS/Materials.  See Contracting Officer letter, December 19, 2003, Subject:  Fee Philosophy for Guardian Installation Protection Program (IPP) Acquisition and Resultant Contract.
Q112:  We request a definition of operations and maintenance with regard to sustainment.  Does it include the provision of operators for the family of system sensors or is it only maintenance and sustainment?  We are assuming that the line replaceable units are GFE.  In as much as this equipment is GFE, will the repairs and spare parts be provided by the Government for sustainment and maintenance?

A112:  The LSI will provide maintenance of the FoS during the one-year sustainment period but the IPP FoS will be operated by

installation personnel, with the exception of the biological detection (DFU) capability.  (The contractor will provide the routine filter change, packaging, shipment, and posting of laboratory results during the first year for the DFU.)  Maintenance will consist of periodic inspection of the FoS to ensure proper performance.  If performance is degraded, the maintainer will repair or replace as appropriate.  LSI operations will not consist of operating collective protection, performing medical surveillance, monitoring computer terminals, or performing Emergency Response.  Initial spares, including LRUs for GOTS will be GFE.  See modified Section C 2.9.1.

Q113:  We assume that because the mission essential first responder equipment is equipment we believe that it is excluded from the material line for pricing purposes.  Please provide clarification.

A113:  No, The material line includes all COTS equipment.

Q114:  If a bid is being submitted as a Joint Venture or new business enterprise how do you intend to evaluate, and adjust, the proposed rates in light of the fact that there is no rate history for DCAA to evaluate or supporting data to allow DCAA to make rates recommendations?  Will the proposed rates be incorporated into the contract?

A114:  Whether a JV or a new business enterprise, DCAA will review all available data and render an opinion.  At that point, the Cost Team will utilize the DCAA opinion and complete the cost evaluation according to Section M of the RFP.  Rates will not be included in the resultant contract.

Q115:  Reference pages 2 and 68 – 72:  Based on the information provided if the RFP it is not clear what the contract price (cost plus fixed fee) will be at award and how subsequent TDs will be priced.  Does the Government intend to prorate the proposed fixed fee over the hours for each TD?  Does the Government intend to include a rate table (with the rates including fee) in the contract which will be used to price each TD?

A115:  The RFP has been revised to add Exhibits IX through XII to assist the offeror in development of its cost proposal.  These Exhibits describe how the cost, fixed fee, and total to be in Section B should be obtained.  This CPFF will be the contractor’s offer to provide the DPPHs, travel, and materials in the performance of TDs issued under the resultant contract.  When a TD is issued in accordance with the H clause, TECHNICAL DIRECTIVE PROCEDURE, the LSI contractor will prepare a Technical Directive Management Plan (TDMP) to include estimated DPPHs and associated costs and fixed fee for performance of the TD.  Upon aproval of the TDMP, by the Technical Monitor (TM), the contractor will perform the TD Statement of Work (SOW) and will be entitled to the total fee only if he provides the total number of DPPHs in the TD.  A rate table will not be included in the contract, however, the contract will establish a fixed fee rate per DPPH based on the total fixed fee in the resultant contract divided by the total DPPHs in the contract.  

Q116:  The page limitations on Volume 5 prohibit us from complying with the “Instructions for Submission of a Contract Pricing Proposal When Other Than Cost or Pricing Data Are Required” on pages 62 – 72.  Sections I - XIV of these instructions require the completion of specific forms and charts -- from the LSI and subcontractors -- and state that referencing other portions of the proposal is not acceptable.  Section L.4.5 (d) states that the cost proposal is to be completely detailed and itemized.  The page limitations in Volume 5, even with Tab A’s exception for FPR Agreements, do not permit an offeror to comply fully with these requirements, particularly when several subcontractors are involved.

A116:  The data requested in pages 66-73 should be included in Volume V, Tab B3 which is now unlimited.  

Q117:  We request that a new “unlimited” tab be added to Volume 5, with specific instructions referencing the Instructions on pages 62 – 72.  To facilitate analysis by DCAA at multiple sites, we also suggest that Sections X and XI (containing data from interdivisionals and subcontractors) be allowed as separable attachments.

A117:  Volume V, Tab B3, which is now unlimited.  

Q118:  Section L.2(4) page 73 is unclear with regard to CLIN 0001.  We cannot assume a start date of 19 April 2004, an end date in GFY06, and a 36-month period of performance for that CLIN.  For pricing purposes only, can we assume a 30-month period of performance for CLIN 0001 (April 2004 - September 2006), with the DPPHs phased evenly across those 30 months?

A118:  Assume a 36 month period of performance from actual start date for CLIN 0001.  The RFP has been revised to reflect this period of performance.  

Q119:  Reference Page 75 Section L.3 (11) contains the following direction; “Each printed side of a foldout shall count as one page.”  We assume that this means an 11 x 17 page with printing the front and back will count as two pages and an 11 x 17 page with printing on just the front will count as one page.  Is our assumption correct?

A119:  A fold out with a printing on front and back is two pages.  A fold out with printing on one side is one page.

Q120:  Reference Section L.2 paragraph 4 pages 73:  “- Assume the following schedule: - Completion of 5 locations in GFY04 (2.5%); - Completion of 30 locations in GFY05 (15%)”  The Draft List of Sites indicates 15 sites in FY04 and 20 sites in FY05 whereas Section L indicates 5 sites in FY04 and 30 sites in FY05.  We are assuming that the number of sites defined by Section L takes precedence over the number of sites expressed by the Draft List of Sites.  Is our assumption correct?

A120:  Yes, Section L.2, provides for 5 locations in GFY04 for proposal preparation.  Attachment 5 indicated the 15 locations that are currently funded for GFY04.

Q121:  Reference Page 79 Section L.4.2 (c) - (TAB A4):  We understand that the Small Business Goal is 23% is of the contract value.  Per comments made at the industry day in December, our understanding is that 23% of the Prime Contractor’s subcontracted amount must be to Small Business at a tier 1 level and that we can count tier 2 and lower subcontracts to attain the 23 % of the contract value.  Is our assumption correct?

A121:  Yes, Assumption is correct.

Q122:  When taking all of the Data Rights requirements and clauses into consideration there appears to be conflicting requirements.  Our understanding is that the Government will only acquire rights to products developed under this contract and the contractors will retain all rights to any and all data developed independent of this contract, i.e. the LSI is not required to obtain unlimited rights to COTS or non developmental products.  Is our assumption correct?

A122:  No.  The Government will get certain rights in accordance with applicable clauses in all deliverables.    

Q123:  Reference Sample TD pages 23 & 25:  For Attachment 1 – Sample Technical Directive, the Government’s Partial Solution for Detection Systems (pg 23) indicated that radiological detector systems will be deployed and that their locations will be shown on Figure 7 (pg 25).  Figure 7 on page 25 does NOT identify any radiological detector systems.  Are they part of partial solution?  If so, what detectors are used and what are their locations?

A123:  The locations and identity of the Radiological detection systems must be determined by the offeror.  Page 23 of the sample TD, detection systems para, will be modified to read:  “the location and identity of chemical and biological detection systems is indicated on the secure area and building site map provided in figure 7.”  The sentence that reads “These include ….detection systems” will be deleted.  

Q124:  Reference ISA Part II page 6 paragraph a.(1):  “a.  Minimize Impact to Critical Mission Operations; 1.  Baseline - Reduce critical mission interruptions by fifty (50) percent.”  Please define critical mission interruptions.  We are assuming that the 50% reduction in critical mission interruptions is referenced to the expected number of interruptions caused when the unprotected installation, e.g. the “as-is” installation, is subject to the CBRN case scenarios discussed in ANNEX C – THREAT SCENARIO RATIONALE.  Is this correct?

A124:  The critical mission interruption refers to any loss of the operational ability to continue the critical mission should a CBRN event occur.  The assumption that 50% reduction in critical mission interruptions is referenced to the expected number of interruptions caused when the upprotected installation , e.g. the “as-is” installation, is subject to the CBRN case scenarios discussed in ANNEX C – THREAT SCENARIO RATIONALE is a correct assumption.

Q125:  Reference Sections L.3 (4) on page 75 and L.3 (9) on page 76:   L.3 (4) “Written portions of the proposal shall be prepared using font Times New Roman 12 or larger and margins of not less than one inch (1”) on both sides and top and bottom of pages.”  L.3(9) “Pages shall be 8.5 x 11 inches, not including foldouts.  Pages shall be typed with at least 1.5-line spacing.  Except for the reproduced sections of the solicitation document, the font shall be Times New Roman with no less than a 12-point font size.  Margins on all four edges of each sheet will be at least one inch.  Proprietary statements, security markings, and page numbers can fall within the defined margin area.  Pages shall be numbered sequentially by volume.  These page format restrictions shall apply to responses to Evaluation Notices (ENs).”  Is it the customer’s intent for these restrictions to apply to the Cost Volume’s support spreadsheets and price breakdowns?

A125:  Yes.  In addition, note that Volume V, Tab BE is now unlimited.  

Q126:  Please explain the allowance for GFS in the Guardian proposal and, if allowed, how should it be costed in the Cost Proposal?

A126:  While it is anticipated that GFS will be included in performance of the individual technical directives (TDs) issued during the

life of the contract, it is not to be costed out in the LSI IPP proposal itself.  Since availability of specific GFS is, at best, uncertain until much closer to the time of actual performance, all such services should be costed out in a typical prime/sub relationship vs. assuming those costs will be paid directly by Guardian to the labs, etc. outside the contract vehicle.  If you plan to pursue the GFS availability should you be selected as the LSI contractor, you may address your plan for doing so in the non-cost areas of your proposal.   

Q127:  Is contract award contingent upon the potential LSI receiving approval for indemnification under Public Law 85-804 or

 applicable coverage under the Saftey Act?

A127:  No.  Furthermore, any proposal submitted contingent upon receipt of either indemnification under Public Law 85-804 or

 
Safety Act coverage will be deemed non-responsive and will receive no further consideration for award.   
Q128: Please confirm that the period of performance for CLIN 0001 will be 36 months from date of award.  Section L implies that

CLIN 0001 expires on 9/30/06.   

A128:  The period of performance for CLIN 0001 is 36 months and the RFP will be revised to include performance into GFY10.

Q129:  A clause entitled "Instructions for Submission of a Contract Pricing Pricing Proposal When Other Than Cost or Pricing Data

Are Required" begins on Page 66 of the RFP.  It describes cost data Sections I through XIV to be provided in the proposal.  We have two questions:  This appears to conflict with the instructions given for Volume 5, Cost Proposal, in paragraph L.4.5.  Are we to provide the information requested by both instructions?  The page limitations given in Exhibit L-1, Proposal Volumes, for the Cost Volume do not appear to accommodate including both the data required by "Instructions for Submission of a Contract Pricing Proposal When Other than Cost or Pricing Data Are Required", and that called for in paragraph L.4.5. Where should it go in the proposal?  A question was previously asked regarding this issue and where the information should be placed, and the published answer was:"See Exhibit L-1 Proposal Volumes for revised page limitations.  Backup cost materials should be placed in Volume 5 Tab B."  However, in the final RFP, Exhibit L-1  does not appear to have been corrected - i.e. for Volume 5, Tab B it says "See limits for Tabs B1,B2 and B3."

A129:  Volume V, Tab B3, which is now unlimited.

Q130:  Past Performance Information, DD 1707 & Section L page 76:  We have a question regarding the number of copies requested

for the 30 January submission.  We assume you require one only copy of Attachment 3, the Past Performance spreadsheet on 30 January with 5 hard copies and 25 CDs provided on 17 February.  Is our assumption correct?

A130:  No.  All electronic and hard copies of both Attachments 2 and 3 are due to Michele Williams NLT 12 O’Clock Noon CST on

 
30 Jan 2004.  

Q131:  Section L.4.1 page 77.  Paragraph L.4.1 reads in part "...an Executive Summary of the overall proposal, Section K,

Representations, Certifications, and Other Statements of Offerors, as well as all other RFP sections requiring fill-in completion by the offeror...This document shall not include any cost information."  When we fill out other sections of the RFP for inclusion in Volume 1, cost data will be filled in, i.e. Section B and the rate tables from pages 68-70.  Do you want Section B and the rate information to be included in Volume 1? 

A131:  The rate information required in pages 68-73 shall be included in Volume V, Tab B3, which is now unlimited.  Section B,

 
however, shall be included  with the other “fill-in” portions of the RFP in the General Volume.
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